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ORVILLE ERNEST GANN was located at Dismas House, 
St. Louis, Missouri, at which tiae he advised his last 
Missouri State Penitentiary number was 69729. He first 
entered the penitentiary in August 1926 on a four-year 
sentence for burglary, re-entered the penitentiary in April 
1931 on a 25-year sentence for murder, and the third time 
in April 1955 for a 20-year sentence for armed robbery. 
He was released on parole on April 9, 1968.

GANN knew JAMES EARL RAY casually while both were 
inmates at the penitentiary. During the period of this casual 
acquaintance, they had some slight association in the yard and 
personal association based on the fact that RAY worked on the 
food detail and sometimes served special dishes to GANN while 
GANN reciprocated by giving RAY special consideration in 
connection with his laundry service, since GANN was assigned 
to the laundry. He considered RAY to be a neat individual 
and clean.

Close associates of RAY at the penitentiary were 
identified to be CARL DRAKE, a tinner, and TED RICHARDSON.

At the time of RAY’s escape, GANN was not confined 
at Jefferson City but was on the honor farm at Springfield, 
Missouri. He has no knowledge of where RAY would be now or 
whom he would seek out once he had escaped.
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JOHN KENNETH HURTT is an inmate at the Missouri 

State Penitentiary, having number 75502s; In 1966 he celled 
in the same hall at the Missouri State Penitentiary as did 
JAMES EARL RAY for two or three weeks, Hp was not close to 
RAY and knows of no close associates of R^Y.

RAY was always "planning an escape" but HURTT 
does not know who helped RAY escape in April 1967, if anyone 
did help him.

He never heard RAY mention a bounty on the life 
of Dr. MARTIN LUTHER KING, nor did he ever hear anything 
from RAY to indicate one way or the other his feelings 
toward the Negro race.

In return for sending about a $15 money order to 
a stationery company under the pretext of ordering some 
paper, all done at the direction of RAY, he (HURTT) was 
given cigarettes in return by RAY for accomplishing this 
feat. RAY was always talking about the man who owned the 
stationery company, and it is this person whom HURTT thought 
RAY said lived in Kansas City. The name it was directed to 
he believes was PEPPER; The paper never came and when he 
asked RAY about delivery RAY told him the paper would be 
delivered directly to RAY.

t
HURTT further^ advised that he never heard of 

"COOLEY'S Organization" jand he has been in the Missouri 
State Penitentiary for the past 15 years. He also has 
no information to indicate RAY was involved with the sale . 
of amphetamine in the penitentiary.

DONALD JOHNSON#-Missouri State Penitentiary 
inmate 19987, believes that when he was in the penitentiary 
during the 1960-1966 era h| believes he may have known who 
RAY was during that time but was not associated or acquainted 
with him personally. ‘

He returned to the Missouri State Penitentiary in 
February 1967 and worked in the bread room of the penitentiary 
in the early part of the year and he was working the morning 
shift during the time RAY escaped.

He does not know whether or not another inmate 
aided RAY in his escape and he does not subscribe to the 
theory that RAY escaped in the bread box being delivered 
to one of the prison farms. He (JOHNSON) personally loaded
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the bread into the wooden bread box and took it down the 
elevator operated by an inmate to the dock and assisted in 
placing the box on the truck.

JOHNSON denied having knowledge of any plan by 
JAMES EARL RAY to escape and had no knowledge as to his 
possible whereabouts.

73

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



ME 44-1987
TOR :tjm
1

JOHN PAUL VELANTI, South 18th Street, St. Louis, 
Missouri, was in the Missouri State Penitentiary from 
February, 1960, to December, 1964. He does not believe 
he was ever housed in the same hall as RAY and therefore 
was not that familiar with him.

He described RAY as a quiet type, seldom noticed. 
RAY did not gamble or play sports or do anything to attract 
attention to himself.

He recalls RAY’s face from having seen him at the 
penitentiary. RAY's escape attempts attracted no attention 
to RAY as there were frequent such attempts by numerous 
inmates.

He has no knowledge of RAY’s present whereabouts.

When reinterviewed, VELANTI admitted he ran a poker 
game and lottery at the penitentiary, having numerous inmates 
working for him. He knew all of them personally, but JAMES EARL 
RAY never worked for him. x

KENNETH LEE WADE, FBI number 568 123 B currently 
incarcerated San Quentin Penitentiary advised he was confined 
to the Missouri State Penitentiary from 1958 through 1965 on 
a robbery charge. He knew JAMES EARL RAY from about 1960 
until 1965. RAY came to the Missouri State Penitentiary with 
a man by the name of RAY PRUETT and they were "fall partners.” 
WADE meant that he, WADE, and PRUETT were convicted at' the 
same time, but PRUETT fought the conviction and did not enter 
the penitentiary until a later date and the entrance was 
timed with that of RAY.

The three of them lived in "K Hall" and RAY and 
WADE worked in the prison bakery.

RAY, PRUETT, WADE, BOBBY BURNS and GLEN SHURNICK 
(phonetic), were selling amphetamine and other stimulants 
to the inmates.
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WADE estimates that the five of them made about 
$1,000 a month or more selling these pills each month.
They paid a guard $100 to bring the jar in and after expenses 
cleared, about $1,000.

RAY had a friend who sent him narcotics, but WADE 
did not know any more about this matter.

He described RAY as closed mouth who never dis­
cussed with anyone and would not discuss any ideas or plans 
he had about escaping.

He stated RAY does not like Negroes and was capable 
of killing Dr. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.

PRUETT, who was a cell block mate, worked in the 
library and would bring books to RAY, who liked to read about 
foreign countries.

BURNS and SHURNICK each got 75 years so they are 
still in the Missouri State Penitentiary.

Money earned in the penitentiary could either be 
in currency and/or script, such as commissary chits.
Money could be sent out by guards who were bribed by the 
prisoners to act as couriers involving items leaving or 
entering the prison, but WADE would not identify any guard 
as he still might be in use by the present penitentiary 
inmates. RAY would earn $1.50 per month from his bakery 
work and $15 or $20 a month would be furnished to RAY by 
friends or the family outside of the prison for his personal 
use in purchasing commissary items.

WADE did not know how RAY handled his prison 
earnings.
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MILTON ZAVALCOFSKI, Moberly Training Center Tor Men, 
#01658, served from November 1960 until April 1968 at the 
Missouri State Penitentiary as a portion of his 20 year sentence 
for armed robbery. Subsequently he was transferred to his 
current place of confinement.

He knew JAMES EARL RAY as an inmate and remembers his 
hiding in the penitentiary as well as his escape.

He could furnish no information concerning his present 
whereabouts or close associates.

U. S. PENITENTIARY, LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

CHARLES CALVIN BOOKMAN possesses FBI #892355 and 
resides in Room 201, Belmont Apartments, 948 South Figueroa, 
South Los Angeles.

BOOKMAN served time at Leavenworth with JAMES EARL 
RAY, becoming acquainted during the latter part of 1956 when 
both were in the kitchen of the trusty farm. He believes RAY 
was from the Biloxi - Gulfport, Mississippi, area and was able 
to pilot an airplane.

In August 1967 BOOKMAN returned to Los Angeles, 
California, from a trip and met JAMES EARL RAY at the Amber 
Room, Figueroa Hotel, Los Angeles. He estimated this to be 
August 12, 1967. RAY went with him to his room in the Belmont 
Apartments and he did not hear again from him until April 19, 
1968, at around noon or 4:00 P.M. when he received a telephone 
call and states the person calling was JAMES EARL RAY.

Interview of BOOKMAN contained many inconsistencies * 
and conflicts in his story and therefore no credibility could, 
be given to the alleged phone call received by him from JAMES 
EARL RAY. *

BOOKMAN has stated that he will contact the FBI ? 
should he again hear from JAMES EARL RAY. >

The substance of the telephone call allegedly re­
ceived from JAMES EARL RAY on April 19, 1968, was that he was ; 
•’hotter than a cow marshal’s pistol" and made a request of 
BOOKMAN for money, which was denied.

76

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



ME 44-1987 
o

JOHN R. KELLER possessed Leavenworth Prison #72614-L.

He was located at 2150 Apache Boulevard, Mesa, 
Arizona, and stated he formerly served tine at Leavenworth^.- 
iron 1955 to 1957. He denies any knowledge or association 
with JAMES EARL RAY and disclaims recognition of the photo­
graph of RAY as. a former inmate at Leavenworth. He states'^"., 
he has no knowledge of RAY’s present whereabouts.

WALTER TERRY RIFE, FBI #4558766, was located at 
Quincy, Illinois, and disclaims having seen JAMES EARL RAY 
since he was incarcerated at Leavenworth, Kansas, in 1957. 
He has no information concerning the current whereabouts of 
JAMES EARL RAY nor his close associates.

When arrested with RAY in 1955, he fabricated the ,,, 
name WILLIARD J. MC BRIDE as the individual from whom they 
purchased stolen money orders obtained in the Kellerville, 
Illinois, Post Office burglary. He also used the name VERNON 
ELMO RIFE on his-‘first arrest.

■ RIFE stated that RAY was prejudiced against Negroes 
in a general way and he has never known RAY to belong.to any 
organization or to make any threat*against Negroes.

Both he and- RAY were sentenced on July 1, 1955, to 
Leavenworth and RIFE was released in 1960';^

77

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



ME 44-1987
TORtPEH
1
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DYRELL DENNIS, located at the Towne Hotel, Milwaukee, 
Wisconsin, listed her home address to be 1151 Wilcox, Los 
Angeles, California. When initially contacted on April 25, 
1968, she advised she had no knowledge of JAMES EARL RAY 
and through viewing his photographs said she did not know 
him or anyone named ERIC STARVO GALT.

Subsequently, she was recontacted on April 27, 
1968, at the Belmont Hotel, Milwaukee, Wisconsin. She 
advised she had resided at the St. Francis Hotel, Los Angeles, 
California, from March 1 to March 9, .1968. One night in 
the Sultan Room, Hollywood Boulevard, she was approached 
by a man who introduced himself as ERIC (Last Name Unknown). 
She described him as follows:'

Race 
Sex 
Age 
Height, 
Build , 
Hair . 
Eyes 
Wearing apparel; 
Characteristics

White
Male
Late 30*s or early 40’s
5’10”
Slender
Salt and pepper
Light blue •
Dressed very neatly
Appeared very nervous; pointed 

' facial features; spoke 'with a 
nasal twang.

This person drank screwdrivers and claimed to 
have worked with computers. He had'in his possession a large 
sum of money in $10 and $20 bills. She talked him into giving 
her a $20 bill after which they left the Sultan Room and, 
went to another club where they continued to drink and then 
went to ERIC’s room, ^403 in the s€. Francis Hotel. As 
they drank he told her on more than one occasion that he 
could become violent. She began*to fear that he might 
possibly be a psychopath and decided against having relations 
with him. Under pretext, she left the St. Francis Hotel.

Subsequently, she again encountered ERIC at the 
Sultan Room at which time he asked for and she returned his 
$20 bill.
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She stated she has not seen this person since 
that time.

ANITA LOUISE KATZWINKEL, Apartment 9, 1727 
Horth Garfield Place, Hollywood, California, was unable 
to identify photographs of ERIC STARVO GALT as anyone she 1 
knew. .She also did not know CHARLES J. STEIN.

KATZWINKEL stated she has never made any obscene 
films although SUE HARRIS had^told‘her that she had made 
a nude film with a female named LOU' (Last Name Unknown).

GINGER DAY, also kn6wn to her as GINGER NANCE, 
like the news broadcasts concerning GALT, favored beer and 
vodka and would listen only to country and western music.

KATZWINKEL has no knowledge of the location of 
JAMES EARL RAY, known as ERICiSTARVO GALT.

MARIE MARTIN, residing at the St. Francis Hotel, 
room 201, Los Angeles, California, listed her original 
name to be MYRIAL TOMASO, and.ishe has also used the names 
MARIE DENNINO and MARIE MARTINELLO. She is a cocktail 
waitress at the Sultan Room in the St. Francis Hotel.J; .

She first met a person who introduced himself 
as ERIC GALT on approximately^December 4, 1967, in the 
Sultan Room. He had been drinking 'at the bar and carried 
on a conversation with her while she was waiting on other 
customers.

She obtained GALT’s agreement to drive her cousin, 
RITA STEIN to New Orleans, Louisiana, to pick up RITA’s 
two children.and return them to Eos Angeles. GALT agreed 
to make the trip if MARIE MARTIN and RITA STEIN and her 
brother, CHARLES STEIN, would ^register to vote and list 
the political party sponsoring form'ef Governor GEORGE C. 
WALLACE as their political candida(tp.

The day after the group registered for the 
WALLACE political party, MARI$ MARTIN, RITA STEIN and CHARLES 
STEIN were issued registration; receipts. Subsequently, 
MARIE MARTIN went to her room and brought a box of clothing
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down to GALT’s car which she had requested to be delivered 
to her mother, LORRAINE CALLAWAY, at New Orleans. At this 
point, RITA and CHARLES STEIN and GALT left.

About one week later, she again saw GALT at the 
St. Francis Hotel, and he gave her a $20 bill after asking 
her if she were short of money. GALT told her he had visited 
some friends who lived in the Industrial Canal area of 
New Orleans near Chef Menteur Highway. GALT became a regular 
customer at the Sultan Room and on her recommendation, he 
moved into the St. Francis Hotel.

On February 14, 1968, GALT came to her room and 
they arranged to trade television sets. He took her portable 
set and gave her his set and a $20 bill. He told her he was 
going south and agreed to drop off another package at her 
mother’s house at New Orleans.

She said that GALT used Spanish phrases on occasion, 
though he told her he could not speak Spanish. He told her 
he had lived in Mexico for about six years and knew a girl 
in Guadaljara.

Referring tack to her portable television set, she 
described it as a 21 inch General Electric set of plastic 
material with built in rattit ear antennas and a handle on top.

The last time MARIE MARTIN saw GALT was on the 
day they traded television sets, February 14, 1968.
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RITA STEIN resides at 5666'Franklin Avenue, Los 
Angeles, California, and first met ERIC S. GALT in mid­
December 1967 at the Sultan Room, St. Erancis Hotel, Los 
Angeles, California. In conversation with GALT relative to 
her two children residing at her mother's home in New Orleans, 
Louisiana, she was able to determine that GALT would drive to 
New Orleans in his own car and return the children to Los 
Angeles. He agreed to take her brother, CHARLES STEIN, with 
him on the trip. Conditions for making this trip were that 
she, her brother and her cousin, MARIE MARTIN, all register 
with GEORGE WALLACE'S party in California.

The following morning GALT drove the three of them 
to a location where they registered for the WALLACE party. 
Following this, they all returned to her residence, after 
which her brother left for New Orleans with GALT«

She next saw GALT when he returned with her two 
children approximately one week. He entered her house upon 
his return but stayed only a few moments and then departed. 
He returned again the next day to bring one of her children's 
toy blackboard which had been left in his car the previous 
day. .

Following this, she saw GALT in the Sultan Room in 
mid-January 1968 and had no conversation with him. This was 
the last time she saw him.

A photograph of ERIC S.GALT obtained from the 
International School of Bartendering, Los Angeles, California, 
when displayed to RITA STEIN, reflected that this indeed was 
the ERIC S. GALT known to her.

JEROME WALLIS VERNON, known also as Jay Wallis Vernon, 
resides in Apartment B, 1246 Woodbury Court, Upland, California.

f

He operated the Home Service Laundry and Dry Cleaning 
Company, Los Angeles, from January 16 to March 23, 1968, and 
a man by the name of GALT was a regular customer at the laundry. 
He believes GALT came in each Saturday afternoon.
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He first saw GALT on Saturday, January 20, 1968, 
and last recalled seeing him on March 16, 1968. GALT would 
always leave a bundle of laundry consisting of underwear, 
T-shirts and dress shirts, and he would pick up the finished 
laundry the following Saturday. Photographs of the T-shirt 
and shorts recovered near the scene of the assassination were 
similar to the ones brought in by GALT, according to VERNON, 
but he could not be sure whether the two pieces belonged to 
him. The laundry markings on the underwear were identified 
by him as being similar to the mark used by his laundry.

GALT always paid for his laundry in cash, using $10 
and $20 bills.
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GINGER LEE NANCE (nee CUNNINGHAM) resides 405 First 
Street, Dixon, Illinois, On the first Saturday or Sunday of 
Kay, 1967, she and ANITA KATZWINKEL left Dixon, Illinois, 
and proceeded to Los Angeles, California, where they established 
residence at the Palms Apartments on Sunset Boulevard, Hollywood.

After about three weeks, she and KATZWINKEL moved to 
1535 Serrano and resided there for about a month and a half.

In June, 1967, she hitchhiked back to Dixon, Illinois, 
accompanied part of the way by her boy friend, JIM LEEHY. She 
cannot recall writing her name and address on any paper nor did 
she give any name and address on a paper to any of the people 
who gave her a ride in a car. She did enjoy several rides 
across country during her hitchhiking trip in Mustangs.

She stated that SUE HARRIS and ANITA KATZWINKEL were 
working as prostitutes in California, working out of SUE's 
apartment.

NANCE further advised the name ERIC S. GALT is unknown 
to her.

CHARLES J. STEIN resides at 5666 Franklin Avenue, 
Los Angeles, California, and first met ERIC S. GALT at the 
SUltan Room of the Saint Francis Hotel, Los Angeles, California, 
on December 24, 1967. His sister, RITA STEIN, was present 
along with his cousin, MARIE MARTIN, at the time of the meeting.

GALT offered to drive STEIN to New Orleans to pick 
up RITA's two children, and return then to Los Angeles.

The morning after the initial meeting, the three of 
then registered at GALT’s request in the political party of 
GEORGE WALLACE.

STEIN and GALT traveled to New Orleans along the 
southern route through Yuna, Tucson and El Paso. While en 
route, GALT nade several telephone calls, mostly while 
traveling through Texas and these calls were made from pay 
telephones.
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GALT mentioned that he had recently returned from 
Mexico where he had formerly had a part ownership in a bar 
and that his former partner, a Mexican, had bought out his 
interest in the bar. This bar was located near a seaport 
or boats.

At New Orleans, GALT expressed the desire not to 
stay at STEIN’s mother’s residence, but to stay at a motel 
and he was directed to a motel in the 1000 block of Charter 
Street (determined to be the Provincial Motel), New Orleans. 
They had driven straight through from Los Angeles, arriving 
on December 17, 1967.

On the following day, he met GALT in the street near 
the residence of CLOVINA ALONZO, 1907| Royal Street, STEIN’s 
mother, and GALT told him he had contacted the individuals he 
needed to contact and wanted to begin the trip back to 
Los Angeles. Subsequently, he telephoned STEIN and delayed the 
departure due to a storm blocking their present route.

They returned to Los Angeles on December 19, 1967, 
with RITA STEIN’s two children. GALT paid for all expenses 
of food and gasoline in cash.

STEIN stated that a girl, with blond hair, about 
5*2”, by the name of JERI, according to information developed 
by he and LOUIS LOMAX, a Los Angeles newspaper man, had lived 
with GALT while GALT resided in Los Angeles. JERI is presently 
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, and had used several names in the past, 
one of which he believed to be DYRELL*

STEIN further stated that he learned, following his 
initial meeting with GALT, that GALT must have thought he was 
being set up for a robbery because MARIE MARTIN told STEIN 
that GALT had made the comment following STEIN’s departure 
from the Sultan Room that "He would hate to have to kill 
someone,”

When STEIN loaded his suitcase into the trunk of 
GALT’s Mustang, he noticed GALT’s blue suitcase there, as 
well as what appeared to be a Kodak camera box. This box 
was yellow and black in color, two and one-half feet long 
and a foot wide.
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Driving through New Orleans, STEIN told GALT he 
was grateful to him for driving down to pick up the 
children of RITA STEIN, but GALT mentioned that he was not 
doing anyone a favor because he had business to conduct in 
New Orleans, himself; and he mentioned an Italian-sounding 
name, which he cannot recall, but is a well-known name in 
New Orleans and the street he mentioned gave STEIN a mental 
picture of the Chalmette-Industrial Canal area of 
New Orleans.

Near El Paso, Texas, GALT purchased a used tire 
for the Mustang at a tire store. Later in the evening of 
the same date, December 16, 1967, STEIN recalled that he 
awoke from a sleep and found they had stopped and GALT was 
making a lengthy telephone call from a public coin box 
telephone booth. He believes this call was made somewhere 
in the vicinity of Houston, Texas, and since it was dark, 
he could recall the light in the telephone booth shining" 
down on GALT while he made the call.

Later in the day, after arriving at New Orleans 
and GALT’s going to the Provincial Motel, STEIN went for a 
walk with his sons through the French Quarter and over near 
the new Trade Mart Building on Canal Street. Later in the 
day, during the evening, GALT commented that he had seen 
STEIN and the two boys earlier that day near the Trade Mart 
Building while he was having a beer at a bar in the area. 
This was at the home of his sister, MARIE LEE, that the 
conversation with GALT took place.

On the evening of December 19, 1967, GALT, STEIN 
and RITA STEIN’s two children departed New Orleans for 
Los Angeles, They drove straight through, arriving on 
December 21, 1967, in the mornings

After this trip, STEIN did observe GALT on a 
couple of occasions in the Sultan Room of the Rotel 
Saint Francis. On one of these occasions, GALT mentioned 
the fact that he had ’’just finished bartending school." 
Sometime after this, either RITA STEIN or MARIE MARTIN

85

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



ME 44-1987

rwnUoncu to’STEIN that GALT was {join;' to New Orleans again, 
and his cii:?;,ii;nt was that GALT liked hamburgers because that 
was all he ate on the trip to New Orleans.

STEIN did advise that he had helped LOUIS LOMAX, 
the newspaper 1'eporter, identify DFRELL DENNIS, who is now 
in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, who allegedly dated GALT on one 
occasion while he resided in Los Angeles. STEIN feds that 
LOMAX “Used” hits for publicity purposes, identifying STEIN 
as the ’’Key to the case.” This upset STEIN because ho 
felt whoever shot KING night take a shot at him.
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JOHN EUGENE GAWRON, residing at 1807 South 11th 
Street, St. Louis, Missouri, was born on July 12, 1897, 
at Chicago, Illinois, and estimates that he has spent about 
45 years of his life in penal institutions.

Paroled in 1954 to a Soldier’s Home, Quincy, 
Illinois, GAWRON became acquainted at a tavern in Quincy 
with LUCILLE RYAN who was separated from her husband, 
JERRY RAYNES. LUCILLE had a daughter named CAROL, then 
living with her; a son named JERRY, who was also living with 
her; a son named JIMMY (JAMES EARL RAY), who was then
serving a Federal sentence in the U. S. Penitentiary
Leavenworth, Kansas; a son named FRANKLIN DENNIS RAYNES, 
deceased; a daughter named MELBA, who was in a mental^ 
hosp^Aa 1 ii^Jacksonv^U^^J l^no^ ;^^^^u|a^d^H^H^^^^

r riamea
located at Alton, Illinois; and a son named 

JOHN (JACK), who was serving a sentence in the Illinois 
State Penitentiary, Menard, Illinois.

GAWRON, allegedly involved in a burglary at Quincy 
Illinois, in 1956, had his parole revoked and was returned 
to the Illinois State Penitentiary, but in 1959 he escaped 
from this institution. After a few days, he went to the 
home of LUCILLE RYAN (RAYNES) where her mother, MARY MAHGR, 
was operating a rooming house, and GAWRON resided with 
LUCILLE at 1913 Hickory, St. Louis, Missouri.

During a period of several months in 1959, he was 
closely associated with JAMES EARL RAY and taught him to be 
a burglar and they went together on a number of burglaries, 
estimated to be twelve. They were committed outside St. 
Louis in the northern part of Missouri, in Iowa, and in 
Illinois. GAWRON taught JIMMY (JAMES EARL RAY) to always 
wear gloves on any kind of a job, and he was surprised that 
he would now go on any job without wearing gloves at the 
risk of leaving fingerprints.

Together they spent a great deal of time, and in 
St. Louis they frequented a tavern known as Ruby’s Bar, late 
known as the Haven Bar, Lafayette Street, just west of 18th.
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RAY generally drank bourbon, which he mixed with sweet soda.. 
He did not drink beer or smoke. Mien meeting any girl fori’ 
the first time, he (RAY) had a tendency to lisp or stutter ' 
in his speech. When RAY wanted a girl, GAWRON usually found 
a girl for him and on such occasions, his relationship with^ 
the girl was only brief and temporary at some second or ';^ 
third rate hotel room.

RAY dresses extremely well when he has money, likes 
good food, and buys expensive clothes, but he always chooses^
a second 
which to

or third rate 
1 ive.

hotel or a cheap rooming house in

arrested
GAWRON, RAY, 
and sentenced

cased the Kroger Store

and JAMES OWENS, with whom RAY was 
to the Missouri State Penitentiary, 
in East St Louis, Illinois, for a

robbery. GAWRON declined to participate because of the 
danger involved.

The following day RAY and OWENS were arrested ■ 
and subsequently RAY was transferred to the Missouri State ‘ 
Penitentiary. GAWRON has not seen RAY since that time.

AO'

In 1961, GAWRON, ALBERT PEPPER, and JOHN RAY, 
brother-in-law and brother of JAMES EARL RAY, respectively, 
were arrested at Louisiana, Missouri, and while his parole 
was revoked, the other two persons received sentences of 
ten days in jail. He does not believe that JAMES EARL RAY 
knows ALBERT PEPPER, who is married to RAY’s sister.

I

GAWRON is on friendly terms with JERRY RAY and 
CAROL RAY PEPPER. All of RAY’s family referred to him as 
’’Uncle JACK," although he has no family relationship. 
The PEPPERs have two young sons, the youngest being named
JIMMY, reportedly named for JAMES EARL RAY 
operate the Grapevine Tavern, and JOHN RAY 
the operation of this tavern at St. Louis,

The PEPPERS 
is active in 
Missouri.

GAWRON stated that insofar as h® knows, the
A*?

subject has not been in St. Louis since his escape from the
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Missouri State Penitentiary in view of the fact he is too' ’ 
well known. GAWRON has not seen JAMES EARL RAY since 1959. .

GAWRON believes JAMES EARL RAY trafficed in '^ t 
drugs or barbiturates at the Missouri State Penitentiary : 
and also had a loan shark businesssthere. On three different, 
occasions, he made purchases of inhalers, normally used for ; ; 
colds, at the request of RAY. His request, though originating; 
from RAY in prison, was relayed to him by CAROL PEPPER. On 
each of these occasions, GAWRON purchased a gross of these / 
inhalers (probably Benzedrine) and on three separate occasions,^ 
he was contacted by a guard from the prison at Jefferson City,' 
Missouri, who would pick up the inhalers and take them to 
RAY at the prison. Reportedly, the guard told GAWRON . 
that each trip was worth a ”C” to the guard.

GAWRON recalls being told by JOHN RAY that JAMES . . 
EARL RAY was in Omaha, Nebraska, during well, making good . ,;,
money as some sort of a salesman. This was in June, ■1967;s;t;^ 
Shortly thereafter, JOHN RAY told GAWRON that JAMES was 
now in Los Angeles, California. GAWRON had no knowledge^, 
as to how JOHN RAY and CAROL PEPPER would have come into 
possession of information relative to the location of JAMES 
EARL RAY in June, 1967.
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V‘ IDENTIFICATION record and description
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The following is subject’s identification record 
as furnished by the FBI Identification Division on April 23, 
1968, under FBI # 405 942 G:

CONTRIBUTOR OF NAME AND ARRESTED 
OR 

RECEIVED

CHARGE DISPOSITION
FINGERPRINTS NUMBER

Array James Earl 
Ray

2/19/46

Sheriff’s 
Office Los 
Angeles, 
Calif.

James Earl 10/11/49
Ray #B-119908

suspicion 
of burglary

PD, Los 
Angeles 
Calif

James Earl 
Ray #139648

10/11/49 suspicion 
459 Penal 
(burglary)

8 months County 
Jail suspended;
2 years proba­
tion served; 
first 90 days 
County Jail; 
146 12/30/49 
Cs 129438

SO Cedar
Rapids, Iowa

James E. Ray
#5937

4/18/50 va gra ncy

PD Alton, 
Il l.

James Earl 
Ray #7514

7/23/51 no opera- released to pay 
tor’s lie- later
ense - no
City License

PD Chicago 
Ill

James Ray 
#D90696

5/6/52 robbery 
(Gun)

Grand Jury 
$3000

Cook County 
Jail Chicago 
Ill

James Ray
#131165

5/9/52 robbery 6/13/52 sen­
tenced to peni­
tentiary 1 to 2 
years

State Peni­
tentiary , 
Joliot, Ill.

James E. Ray 
#32419

6/13/52 robbery 1 to 2 years
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CONTRIBUTOR OF NAME AND ARRESTED CHARGE DISPOSITION
FINGERPRINTS NUMBER OR

RECEIVED

State Peni­
tent iar y 
Pontiac, Ill.

James E. Ray 7/7/52 robbery 1 to 2 years
#19121 1952 in 3/12/54

transfer discharged
from Joliet . *

SO Edwards­
ville, Ill.

James Earl 8/30/54 burglary
Ray #2640 & larceny

PD Hannibal 
Missouri

James E. Ray 3/23/55 investigation 
#40714 of breaking &

entering Post 
Office

State High­
way Patrol 
Macon, Mo.

James Earl 3/23/55 cashing released to
Ray #B-3376 stolen pos- Postal Inspec-

tal money tor Kansas City 
orders Mo., 3/24/55

USM Kansas 
City, Mo.

James Earl 3/28/55 forgery sentenced to 15
Ray #12018 U.S. Postal months custody

Money Order Attorney General

SO Kansas 
City Mo.

James Earl 3/28/55 forgery - 3/7/55, 3 years
Ray #29637 Government and 9 months

U. S. Peni­
tentiary 
Leavenworth, 
Kan.

James Earl 7/7/55 Post Office 3 years and 9
Ray #72498-L Laws Forge months 5/20/58,

Money conditional re-
Orders lease 3/31/59,

maximum 4/5/58, 
conditional re­
lease on charge 
of Post Office 
forgery Post 
Office Money 
Orders

PD St.
Louis, Mo.

James Earl 10/10/59 suspicion
Ray #81071 of robbery
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CONTRIBUTOR OF NAME AND 
FINGERPRINTS NUMBER

ARRESTED CHARGE DISPOSITION
OR 

RECEIVED

PD St. Louis James Earl
Mo. Ray #81071

10/16/59 suspicion 
of robbery 
stealing & 
fugitive 
other 
authorities

State Peni- James Earl 
tentiary Ray #00416 
Jefferson
City, Mo.

3/17/60 *TC” 20 years (20,
operating 7, 5, con-
motor vehi- current) 
cle without 
permission 
of owner 
robbery first 
”b/m DDW” 
(2 charges)
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Th© following is a description of the subject
obtained from sources set out elsewhere in this report;

Nano:
Sex:
Race:
Dato of Birth;
Place of Birth:
Height;
Weight:
Hair:
Eyes:
Social Security No.:
Array Serial Number: 
FBI Number:

JAMES EARL RAY, aka 
Male
White
March 10, 1928
Alton, Illinois
5*10”
163 - 174 pounds 
Brown
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•II

INDEX

ACORD, JOHN

ADAMS, JOSEPH

20

48

AEBY, BILLY BROWN 47

AEBY, NEIL 57, 68, 69, 70

AEROMARINE SUPPLY COMPANY 30

ALABAMA DRIVERS LICENSE 12

ALONZO, CLOVINA 84

AMERICAN - SOUTHERN AFRICA COUNCIL 20

ANDERSON, PATRICIA 25, 26

ASHE, BOBBY FRED 69

ATLANTA, GEORGIA ADDRESSES 29, 30, 31

AUSTIN, BLACKY 61

AUSTIN, JOSEPH ELMER 69

AUTOMOBILE PURCHASE 11

AUTOMOBILE REGISTRATION 13

AVALON CLEANERS & LAUNDRY, INC. 18, 19, 37

BANK OF AMERICA MONEY ORDERS 20, 23, 24,
26, 27

BANK, SAFETY DEPOSIT BOX 11

BARNETT, LEO 48

BARTENDING, INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL OF 21, 28
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BEDSPREAD 35, 37

BEER, SCHENZ ^AN 35

BEMAN, RICHARD 47

BINOCULARS, BANNER BY BUSHNELL 33, 34

BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA ADDRESS 11, 19

BLOCK, JULIUS 47

BOND, JAMES 49 ,

BOOKMAN, CHARLES CALVIN 76

BRADLEY, JAMES H. 49

BRADLEY, JIMMY Z. 49

BRITTON, THOMAS 50

BROWN, JAMES W. 51

BURNS, BOBBY 74, 75

CALLAWAY, LORRAINE 80

CANADIAN POSTAL MONEY ORDERS 8, 9, 10

CANADIAN RESIDENCE 8, 11

CAPITOL HOMES 36

CARPENTER, JEROME 50

CARPENTER, JIMMY 55, 57

CARPENTER, RUBY 40, 44

CONTINENTAL DANCE CLUB STUDIO 12

CORT FOX FORD COMPANY 25

COX, EVERETT WAYNE 52
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CREWS, THOMAS B. 

CURTIS, RAY LOUIS 

DAY, GINGER 

DANCING LESSONS 

DeGRASSE, MARIAN 

DENN^NO, MARIE 

DENNIS, DYRELL 

DONIAN, MICHAEL 

DONIAN, SUSAN 

DOWDA, LEWIE 

DRAKE, CARL BENTON 

DYKEMA, DALE LEROY 

EDMONDSON, GEORGE 

FLETCHER, JAMES C. 

FORMULA, E. Z. " 

FREEMAN, DR. MARK 0. 

FRIENDSHIP CLUB 

FULLER, MABLE 

FUTURA BOOKS, INC. 

GALT, ERIC

GALT, ERIC S.
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53, 54, 66

79

12, 17, 18

29

79

78, 86

44

44

54, 55, 69, 70

50, 60, 71

22

54

70

10

16

12

45

8, 26

8, 10, 12, 22, 
23, 24, 33, 37

8, 9, 10, 11, 12 
13, 14, 15, 16, 
17, 19, 20, 21, 
22, 23, 24, 25, 
26, 27, 28, 29, 
30, 31, 32, 33, 
34, 38
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GANN, ORVILLE EARNEST 71

GARCIA, MATEO LOPEZ 56

GARNER, JIMMY DELTON 29, 32

GAWRON, JOHN EUGENE 61, 87, 89

GOODIN, BEN 54

GRIDLEY, MELVIN 0. 5?

GUINAN, FRANK JOSEPH 57

H. BECKMAN CHEVRON SERVICE STATION 24

HARRIS, SUE 79, 83

HEDGPETH, C. M. 23, 24

HILL, FLOYD EVANS 58

HILL, STERLING JUNIOR ^

HOME SERVICE LAUNDRY & DRY CLEANING COMPANY 21, 36

HOTEL, REBEL MOTOR 33, 34

HURTT, JOHN K. 72

JAPANESE HANDCUFFS 28

JOHNSON, DONALD 64, 72

JOHNSON, JOHN E. 59

KATZWINKEL, ANITA LOUISE 79, 83

KELLER, JOHN R. 77

KING, DR. MARTIN LUTHER, JR. - SHOOTING 22, 34

KLEMP, HAROLD DEAN 66

LAIL, PAUL ALVIN ,55
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LAMPHERE, JACK 55

LARSON, ERIC 52

LAUNDRY & CLEANERS 18, 21, 3?, 36
^ A F

LAUNDRY MARKS 18,*21, 22, 35
36, 37

LEE, MARIE 85

LEERY, JIM 83

LILLIBRIDGE, CECIL 56

LOCAL SWINGER 25, 26

LOCKSMITH LEDGER 27 ,

LOCKSMITHING INSTITUTE 9, 10, 20, 24,
26, 28, 30, 31

LOMAX, LOUIS 84, 86

LOPEZ, MATEO GARCIA 56

LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA, ADDRESSES 15, 22

LOWMEYER, HARVEY 30, 31, 38

MAHER, MILDRED 45

MAHER, WILLIAM E, 45 '

MAIL FORWARDING SERVICE 23

MAP OF MEXICO 32

MARTIN, MARIE 29, 79, 80, 81
84

MARTIN, RUSSELL LEE 57

MARTINELLO, MARIE 79
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MAYBERRY, FRANK 66

MCBRIDE, WILLIARD J. 77

MEDRANO, MANUELA AGUIRRE 15

MENNEN AFTA SHAVING LOTION BOTTLE 35

MEXICAN ADDRESSES 14, 15

MILES, BILLY EDWARD 48, 60

MODERN PHOTO BOOK STORE 12

MORALES, IRMA 15

MOTEL, PROVINCIAL 19

NANCE, GINGER 1 79, 83

NATIONAL DANCE STUDIO 17

NEW ORLEANS TRIP 19

NEWSPAPER, COMMERCIAL APPEAL 34

NEWSPAPER, FREE PRESS 23, 26

NOLAN, WALTER E. 60

NUNN, HOWARD 61

O’CONNOR, JIM 61

OWENS, JAMES COAMA 61, 66, 67,
68, 98

PEPPER, ALBERT BENNY 43, 88

PEPPER, CAROL RAY 40, 43, 89

PIEDMONT LAUNDRY 33, 37

PORTER, ROBERT DALE 56
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?0/

POWELL, ROBERT LYNN 63, 65

PRUETT, RAY 63, 74, 75

PSYCHOLOGIST 16 .

RADIO, CHANNEL MASTER 35

RAY. EARL E. 45

RAY, JAMES EARL 8, 13, 29,
32, 33, 35, 
36, 37, 38

RAY, JERRY 42, 50,-88

RAY, JOHN LARRY 40

RAY, LUCILLE MARY 40, 87

RAYNES, JERRY 40

RENFRO, RALPH - ■ ■ • ^v*^

RHODESIA 20 ~

RICHARDSON, JAMES EDWARD 64, 71

RIFE, VERNON ELMO, 77

RIFE, WALTER TERRY 77

RIFLE, REMINGTON GAME MASTER- 30, 34, 3,6

RIGGER, DONALD DEAN 64

ROSE, ORLAN EUGENE 65

RUSSELL, GEORGE WILLIAM §5

RUSSELL, JAMES R. , * s 65

RYAN, FRANK DELANO ' Xx 43

43
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RYAN, MELBA MARIE 44

SARTAIN, CAROL 42

SARTAIN, MICHAEL 42

SARTAIN, WILLARD 42

SCHUBERT, PATRICIA 25, 26

SERO, HARRY 66

SERVICE STATIONS 24, 25

SHURNICK, GLEN 74, 75

STEIN, CHARLES J. 19, 29, 79. 81
83, 8?

STEIN, RITA 19, 79, 8^
84, 85

STONE, THERESA 29

STREET, GJERDIS 42

SUPERIOR BULK FILM COMPANY 13, 14, 1^, 16

T-SHIRT 35

TIFFANY ENTERPRISES 27, 28

TOMASO, MYRIAL 79

UNDERSHORTS 35

UNDERWOOD, IVAN DALE 67

U. S4 POSTAL MONEY ORDERS 28, 29, ^0

VALENTI, JOHN 51, 52, 74

VERNON, JEROME WALLIS 21, 81

WADE, KENNETH LEE 74, 75
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i

WALLACE, JAMES D.

WHITE, JERRY WAYNE

WILLARD, JOHN 

YORK ARMS COMPANY 

ZAVALOFSKI, MILTON

67, 

68

33

33

51,

68

76
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TO:

FROr

LAG, CHICAGO

S^C, AAuSAc CITY (4M-7bO) 

IN

Ke Kanaas City summary airtel 6/6/69,

Enclosed for each receiving office is one pnotCjjraph oi 
PAUL OSBOKN L IDGL'A. sansas City, issourl. Police i>epartoeni 
1106162.

Enclosed photograph for use in investigation to locate 
jRIDGLHAN, a former fellow inmate of subject RAY, for interview.

2 - Cnicapo (Ina* 1)
2 - Cleveland (Inc. 1)
2 - Oklahoma City C nc. 1)
2 - Sacramento (Enc. 1)
1 - Kansas City
RViiiB
(9)
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U \ /^i

ALLTEL

i‘U: DIRECTOR, Fai (MU-18U1)

FRL ; SAL, KA .A. CITY (hC-7iu)

Re Kansas City ually salaries 6/b/b» an- e/t/t8.

Lnciosao tc tV« buraku and eac uifice i- oku . not-. ■ rap.> 
of JACgU^lJ/^ J^j.. ^IX . ..a S.^ .Li^^UVGup, M\Xi^ 

^BQfis^riH^rj- enclosed photograph of KLIKL furalBiiad lor UBe in 
invest! atior. to locate net paramour PAUL CL. j^;. 4.1 iXLLAa , 
terser fallow inmate of subject RAY, Tor int*4rvx^wl

3 bureau Gac. 1)
I - Atlanta ( ic. 1)
1 * Sirvingnasi (-nc. 1)
1 - Chicago (Ene. 1)
1 - Cincinnati (Enc. 1)
1 - Cleveland ( ;.c, 1)

~ . :all ^ G; c. 1)
1 Indianapolis Gnc. 1)
1 - Jackaonvillw G-r.c. 1)
1 • Los Angelas (anc. 1)
1 - Louisville (nc. 1)
1 - Lusapniu (Lnc. 1)
1 - linnuapolis (Lnc. 1)
1 - Oklahoma City (Lr.c. 1
1 - .Sacramento Gnc. 1)
1 - Seattle (Lnc. 1)

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



FBI OKLA CITY

FBI DALLAS
*2110K
1O1PM URGENT 6/8/68 GUM 
TO AL SACS
FRNM DIRECTOR 44-38861

MURKIN

SUBJECT JAMES EARL RAY APPREHENDED AT LONDON, 
ENGLAND, JUNE EIGHT INSTANT. DISCONTINUE EFFORTS TO LOCATE 
AND REMOVE ALL STOPS.

ARMED AND DANGEROUS.
END
WDM
fbi okla city

JUN 6 W
gt—OKLAHOMA.QI
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OPTIONAL FORM NO. 10 
MAY 1M2 EDITION 
OSA FFMR (« CFW) 101*11.0

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum
to :

FROM : 

subject:

SAC, OKLAHOMA CITY (44-686)

SA STEPHEN S. TRAVIS

DATE: 6/11/68

MURKIN 
CR 
00: Memphis

Re memo of SA j. A. GRIMES.

The following persons advised on dates 
indicated that there were no robberies in their respec­
tive jurisdictions which they considered would merit 
display of RAY’s photograph to witnesses:

Chief WILLIAM BILL HENSLEE, Norman Police 
Department, 5/31/68;

Sheriff WILLIAM BILL PORTER, Cleveland County 
Sheriff's Office, Cleveland, 5/31/68;

Chief SHORTIE MYERS, Noble Police Department, 
6/3/68;

Sheriff JOE HUDDLESTON, McClain County Sheriff's 
Office at Purcell, 6/5/68.

SERIALIZED JLfiIEO-C 
JUN 111368

f Bl — OKLAHOMA CITY

9010-1M

(1)2 
SST:caw

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan -^d^pd)^^1
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to :

FROM :

subject:

CTTKNAI, FORM NOt W 
MAYMINTION 
OSA FPMR (<! CP*) Wt-1U« 

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum
SAC OKLAHOMA CITY (44-686) (P) date: 6/12/68

SA SEAN M. McWEENEY

MURKIN
CR 
00 MEMPHIS

Re memo of SA J. A. GRIMES 5/24/68.

On 5/29/68 information set forth and requested 
in referenced office memo was discussed with the following 
individuals at 'agencies indicated and all advised in the 
negative:

JOE FAIRCLOTH, Sheriff, Mays County, Oklahoma

L.L. WEAVER, Chief of Police, Pryor, Oklahoma

BOB NUCKOLLS, Sheriff, Delaware County, Oklahoma

SUBJECT JAMES EARL RAY SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
ARMED AND DANGEROUS.

jow.w

SMM:pc SEARCHED_ _ _ _ _ _ INDEXED _ 
seriauzedjL^filed-jS 

JU?11^1968
OKLAHOMA CITY

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan
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FBI OKLA CITY

FBI KAN CITY

428 PM URGENT 6/1/268 WSA

TO DIRECTOR 44-38861, MEMPHIS, OKLAHOMA CITY

FROM KANSAS CITY 44-760 2P

MURKIN

RE MEMPHIS TELETYPE, JUNE ELEVEN LAST.

RE COMMUNICATION REVEALED THAT A REVIEW OF RAY’S INFATE 

FILE AT MSP, JEFFERSON CITY, MO. REVEALED THAT JOSEPH SEIBERT 

INMATE NO. W ZERO NINE ONE ONE ONE, ALSO MADE AN-UNSUCCESSFUL 

ATTEMPT TO ESCAPE FROM MSP ON MARCH ELEVEN, SIXTYSIX. KANSAS

CITY WAS REQUESTED TO INTERVIEW SEIBERT TO ASCERTAIN IF HE HAD

ANY KNOWLEDGE OF RAY’S ESCAPE PLANS AND IF SEIBERT POSSESSES

ANY INFORMATION REGARDING ESCAPE ROUTE TO CANADA AND MEANS OF

OBTAINING CANADIAN PASSPORT.

HARRY LAUF, RECORDS CLERK, MSP, ADVISED THIS DATE THAT 

JOSEPH SEIBERT WAS TAKEN TO JACKSON COUNTY COURT HOUSE, 

JACKSON,COUNTY, MISSOURI, ON A WRIT ON OCTOBER ELEVEN, SIXTY- 

seven; he escaped from there October thirteen, sixtyseven, he 

WAS ARRESTED OCTOBER TWENTYSIX, SIXTYSEVEN, BY LOCAL AUTHORITIES 

END PAGE ONE
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KC 44-760 

PAGE TWO 

AT TULSA,- OKLA., FOR ARMED ROBBERY AND WAS TO BE PROSECUTED 

BY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, TULSA, OKLA. MSP.RECORDS FURTHER 

REVEAL THAT ON NOV. TWENTYNINE, SIXTYSEVEN, SEIBERT WAS TAKEN 

TO THE EASTERN STATE HOSPITAL, VENITA, OKLA., FOR NINETY DAYS 

OBSERVATION. MSP RECORDS COULD FURNISH NO ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

RE SEIBERT.

OKLA. CITY, AT TULSA, OKLA., ATTEMPT TO LOCATE PRESENT 

WHEREABOUTS OF SEIBERT AND INTERVIEW HIM AS REQUESTED BY THE BUREAU.

RE COMMUNICATION FURTHER ADVISED THAT ALTHOUGH JAMES EARL RAY 

HAS, BEEN ARRESTED, IT IS IMPERATIVE WE CONTINUE EFFORTS TO ACCOUNT 

FOR RAY'S ACTIVITIES AND WHEREABOUTS DURING ENTIRE PERIOD OF FREEDOM 

FROM APRIL TWENTYTHREE, SIXTYSEVEN, TO JUNE EIGHT LAST, IN VIEW OF 

WORLD WIDE PUBLICITY ATTACHED TO POSSIBLE CONSPIRACY IN REGARD TO 

DEARTH OF MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR. IT IS ESSENTIAL WE DETERMINE KNOWN 

ASSOCIATES OF RAY DURING HIS PERIOD OF FREEDOM, HIS SOURCE OF FUNDS 

AND DEPOSITORY FOR KEEPING FUNDS, HOW HE GAINED KNOWLEDGE OF 

NECESSARY DOCUMENTS NEEDED TO OBTAIN CANADIAN PASSPORTS, HIS CONTACTS 

IN CANADA IN ORDER TO OBTAIN SUCH DOCUMENTS, AND HIST TRAVEL 

DURING THIS PERIOD. 

END 

RCES 

CORR PGE TWO LINE 14i WD ONE, DEATH 

LINE 18, WD 10 HIS 

END 

RJS 

FBI OKLA CITY 

X
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OPTIONAL FORM NO. K 
MAY IM EDITION 
OSA FPMR <41 OPR) MHU 

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum
to : SAC, OKLA. CITY ( 44-686 ) date: 6/10/68

from : BALES

subject: MURKIN
J CR 

00 r MEMPHIS

Rememo SA GRIMES 5/24/68.(Ser. 212)

Det. E. J. NEELY, Ponca City PD, and Dep. Sher. SID COOKERLY 

(NA), Kay Co. SO, each advised on 6/4/68 they have no unsolved 

robberies in this area in wHich RAY could be involved.

It is known there are no Armed Robberies in the two rural 

counties of Osage and Pawnee unsolved in which RAY could be considered
I 

a possible suspect. 1

1
JHB

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan
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OPTIONAL. FORM NO. W 
MAY HU COITION 
OSA OEN. REO. NO. »

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum
TO : SAC, OC (44-686) date: 6/11/68

FROM : SA WILLIAM R. HARRIS

subject: MURKIN
CR

ReMemo SA J. A. GRIMES, 5/24/68.

On dates indicated, this matter was discussed with 
the following individuals for the purpose of having subject’s 
photo shown to witnesses in logical robberies since 4/23/67: 

6/4/68
Sheriff HCWARD SAMPIER, Beckham County SO, Sayre.
Marshal GERALD KUPKA, Canute, Okla.

• Sheriff LEON GILLILAND, Roger Mills County SO, Cheyenne.
Chief JERRY ATCHLEY, Erick, Okla., PD.
Chief of Police CLARENCE MAYBERRY, Elk City PD.
Chief MATT ELLISON, Sayre, Okla. •
Patrolman BILLY THOMAS, OHP, Sayre.

6/6/68

Sheriff HUGH COMPTON, Blaine County, Watonga.

6/7/68

Sheriff CLIFF HINES, Washita County, Cordell, Okla.
XXXUI Undersheriff BOB SMITH, Custer County, Arapaho, Okla.
COP LEWIS BERRY, Clinton, Okla.

ARMED AND DANGEROUS.

WRF:wrf
(1)

^r^  ̂J^'^^
Buy US. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan
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to

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20535

June 10, 1968

SAC, Oklahoma City

RE: FUGITIVE PUBLICITY—CANCELLATION

As you know, JAMES EARL RAY, Identification 
Order No. 4182, is no longer being sought by this Bureau., 
Make certain that your publicity outlets are promptly nolif r r ^S£WEDof the cancellation.

John Edgar Hoover 
Director

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176
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Optional form no. w 
MAY 1962 COITION 
OSA GEN. REO. NO. 27

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum
TO : SAC, OKLAHOMA CITY (44-686)

FROM : SA JOHN S. LANDBECK, JR.

date: 6/12/68

subject: j^jjj

CR
(OO:ME)

Re SA GRIMES memo 5/24/68.

On 6/7/68 BENNY MC MULLEN, Chief of Police, Holdenville, Oklahoma, 
and ELBERT MOORE, Sheriff, Hughes County, advised that they had no unsolved 
bobberies in their territories during the last year from 4/23/67 to 4/4/68.

2 - 44-686
JSL/s

^^ -̂ - - - - - -

Ml 31968 ■

■—SluPi^AHOMAcrrYr, ,

Buy US. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176



FBI ■■
X 

. ' Date: 6-12-68

Transmit the following in i  
;■ (Type in plain text or code)

... AIRTEL ' , AM ■ .Via__________________ ’___________ __________________
H , (Priority or Method of Mailing)

TO: SAC, ALBANY ,

EROM: SAC, MEMPHIS (44-1987) P ,

MUREIN

In view of subject’s apprehension, any office having 
outstanding leads or requests for circularization in any publica­
tion of any kind should cancel outstanding request now.

A & D

2 Albany .
T All Continental Offices 
1 Memphis

RGJ:BN 
(56)

SEARCHEDQJND^XKOi.!•»«••«• 

SERfAUZEb..... .C—HUD,..,, ..C. 

JUN 1419GB 
tel ■* OXAHOMA CITY

Approved: ’ \ ^ ks^
Specia/Agent in Charge

Sent « M Per
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UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum
to : SAC, OKLAHOMA CITY (44-686) date: 6/13/68

from : SA John L, Spurgers, Jr.

subject: MURKIN
CR
00 Memphis

ReOCmemo of SA J. A. GRIMES, 5/24/68.

The above matter has been discussed with TEX THIXTON, Comanche 
County SO, and Major CIEO STOUT, PD, Lawton, Okla., with negative 
results.

JLS
(1)

9010*108

SEARCHED.,,  .INDEXED„»M,M*»*«*«*"

SERIALIZED-___ --------------------------------

JUN 141968

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan
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The following investigation was conducted 
by SA HAYES H. BURLESON on June 13, 1968:

At.McAlester, Oklahoma

A review of the files of the Oklahoma.
State Penitentiary (OSP), revealed that JOSEPH SEIBERT, 
OSP 176649, was received on February 17, 1968, from 
Tulsa County, Oklahoma, and sentenced to a tern of 
150 years for the crime of Robbery with Firearms, 
after former conviction of a felony. His minimum 
release date is shown as February 20, 2040,- and his 
maximum release date is shown as February 17, 2118, 
A review of the FBI Identification Record of JOSEPH 
SEIBERT, FBI #74 262 C, revealed that he was received 
at the Department of Corrections, Jefferson City, Missouri, 
on October 2, 1964, under #09111, and charged with Murder, 
1ST Degree. He was sentenced for the remainder of his 
natural life. The next item shown on SEIBERT’S 
Identification Record is October 26, 1967, when he 
was arrested by the Sheriff's Office, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 
and charged with Armed Robbery and Assault and Battery 
with a Deadly Weapon. The next item on SEIBERT'S 
Identification Record is shown as November 17, 1967, 
when he was fingerprinted as a patient at Eastern 
State Hospital, Vinita, Oklahoma. The final entry 
on SETBERT's Identification Record is February 17, 1968, 
when he was received at Oklahoma State Penitentiary, 
McAlester, Oklahoma, sentenced to a tern of ISO years, 
for Robbery, with Firearms.

During an interview with JOSEPH SEIBERT he 
admitted a casual acquaintance with JAMES EARL RAY while 
both were inmates at the Missouri State Penitentiary. 
He stated that RAY was an inmate at Missouri State 
Penitentiary when SEIBERT arrived there on October 2, 
1964.

SEIBERT stated that he worked in the Mess Hall 
at Missouri State Penitentiary while JAMES EARL RAY worked 
in the bakery which joins the Mess Hall. SEIBERT said 
that he occasionally visited with RAY from time to tine 
while they were working and also on the pr isoji ^d.

Serialized ^r_ _ _ _ _ _

Indexed 
filed_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ .....

^6^'^<
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However, SEIBERT maintained that he would not consider 
himself a personal friend of RAY.

SEIBERT said that on March 11, 1966, he 
planned to escape from the Missouri State Penitentiary. 
He said that he learned later that RAY had planned 
to escape on the same night, and their plans were not 
known to each other. SEIBERT said that he placed 
a dummy in his cell and went to the recreation room. 
According to SEIBERT, after the recreation period 
was over, he hid behind the television set in the 
recreation room and waited for the lights to be turned 
out. When the lights were out, he began moving 
television benches to the prison wall and had planned 
to go over the wall by means of climbing the television 
benches. Unknown to SEIBERT at the tine,-RAY had 
managed to get onto the roof of the Administration 
Building, but had fallen and hurt his arm. The prison 
officials and guards were looking for RAY when they 
discovered SEIBERT. He said that RAY managed to hide 
himself in a ventilation shaft in the Officers Dining 
Roon for two or three days before he was discovered.

SEIBERT advised that he could furnish absolutely 
no information concerning RAY's escape from the Missouri 
State Penitentiary on April 23, 1967. 'He said he knew 
nothing of RAY’s escape plan, his source of funds, his 
associates inside or outside the penitentiary, nor any 
thing concerning the murder of Dr. MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.

SEIBERT said that it was his personal opinion 
that RAY was not intelligent enough to plan the murder 
of Dr. KING and certainly not intelligent enough to plan 
an apparent elaborate escape procedure including passports 
by himself. SEIBERT said that when RAY finally escaped 
from the Missouri State Penitentiary, he escaped in a 
bread box from the bakery where he had worked for a long 
period of tine. SEIBERT stated that he had observed that 
this method of escape would probably be successful after 
he had been at the penitentiary for only a short period 
of time.
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SEIBERT stated that he actually escaped’ 
.from the Jackson bounty Court House, Kansas City, 
Missouri, on J^feMr lS, 1967. He said that he 
made his way from Kansas City, ^sPuri, to Tulsa, 
Oklahoma, where he arrived on 16, 1967.
SEIBERT said that for reasons of possibly incriminating 
himself in local burglaries, he did notcare to state 
how he traveled from Kansas City, Missouri, to Tulsa, ■ 
Oklahoma. He claimed that he went to work on Nw4^^r 
16, 1967, at the Piccadilly Cafeteria, Tulsa, Oklahoma, 
under the name JOHN LA MAY. He claimed to have worked , 
at the Piccadilly Cafeteria as a dishwasher until , 
October 26, 1967, when he was arrested at Tulsa, 
Oklahoma, for Armed Robbery. He said that he stayed 
at the Grand Hotel on East 3rd Street, lisa, Oklahoma, 
during this period of time, also using the name JOHN 
LA;MAY. He claimed to have been in continual custody 
from October 26,. 1967, until the present tine. He 
admitted spending approximately 30 days at the Vinita, 
Oklahoma Eastern State Hospital.

‘ The following description was obtained from 
observation, interview, and records of the Oklahoma State 
Penitentiary:

Name 
Race 
Sex 
Height 
Weight 
Hair 
Eyes 
Build 
Complexion 
Birth 
Occupation 
Education 
FBI # 
Marital Status 
Parents . 
Brothers

JOSEPH SEIBERT ’
White
Male
5’11”
169 pounds
Brown
Green
Medium
Ruddy
March 4, 1939, Topeka, Kansas 
Electrician
6th Grade
74 262 C
Single

WILLIAM SEIBERT, age 40, 
Topeka, Kansas, exact address 
unknown;
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Sisters

CLARENCE SEIBERT, age 36, 
Topeka, Kansas, exact address 
unknown;
JOHN SEIBERT, Topeka, Kansas, 
exact address unknown 
MARCELLA LEWIS, age 34, 
Topeka, Kansas, exact address 
unknown;
THERISA ASHLY, age 33, Topeka, 
Kansas, exact address unknown; 
ROSEMARY KISNER, age 31, 
Topeka, Kansas, exact address 
unknown
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